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December 11, 2023 


 


Donovan CPAs 


9292 N. Meridian Street, Suite 150 


Indianapolis, IN 46260 


 


This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements of Indiana 


Agricultural Education, Inc. d/b/a Indiana Agricultural & Technology School (the “School”), which comprise the 


statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities and change 


in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the 


“financial statements”), for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements are 


presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 


United States (“U.S. GAAP”).  


 


Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 


considered to be material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 


information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable the judgment of a reasonable person 


relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or 


misstatement monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.  


 


We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief as of December 11, 2023, the following representations made 


to you during your audits.  


 


Financial Statements  


 


1) We fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated May 30, 2023, 


including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 


with U.S. GAAP. 


2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP.  


3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 


relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements free from material misstatement, 


whether due to fraud or error. 


4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to 


prevent and detect fraud. 


5) With respect to nonattest services provided, we have performed the following: 


a. Made all management decisions and performed all management functions; 


b. Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services; 


c. Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed; 


d. Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and 


e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 


6) The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their related 


disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure reasonable in accordance with 


U.S. GAAP.  


7) Related-party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 


accordance with U.S. GAAP. 


8) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment or 


disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 


9) There is no known actual or possible litigation, claims, or assessments required to be accounted for and 


disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  


10) Material concentrations have been appropriately disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 


11) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the School is contingently liable, have been properly 


recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
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Information Provided  


 


12) We have provided you with: 


a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 


financial statements, such as records (including information obtained from outside of the general and 


subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters.  


b. Additional information you have requested from us for the purpose of the audits. 


c. Unrestricted access to persons within the School from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit 


evidence. 


d. Minutes of the meetings of the governing board or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which 


minutes have not yet been prepared.  


13) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 


statements.  


14) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 


materially misstated as a result of fraud. 


15) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the School involving: 


a. Management, 


b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 


c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


16) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the School’s financial 


statements communicated by employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. 


17) We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and 


regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 


18) We are not aware of any known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessment whose effects should be 


considered when preparing the financial statements.  


19) We have disclosed to you the names of all of the School’s related parties and all the related-party 


relationships and transactions, including any side agreements.  


20) The School has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets 


nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 


21) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 


agreements applicable to us. 


22) The School is an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of 


which we are aware that would jeopardize the School’s tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on 


unrelated business income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you. All required filings with tax 


authorities are up-to-date. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Keith Marsh, Chief Operating Officer 


Signature:


Email:
Keith Marsh (Dec 12, 2023 09:18 EST)


Keith Marsh
kmarsh@indiana.ag
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☑ APPROVE CALENDAR


Calendar / Instructional Time 
by School Calendar Type


INSTRUCTIONAL TIME


Waiver Days Virtual Asynchronous Days Virtual Synchronous Days In Person Instructional Days Total Days Minutes


Indiana Agriculture and Technology Student Specific Non-Compulsory 0 0.00 0.00 180.00 180.00 64800


☑ APPROVE ATTENDANCE


Attendance 
Per School


Instructional
Days


Eligible Student Count
>=162 days


Eligible Student Count
<162 days


Aggregate Days
Attended


Aggregate Days
Excused


Aggregate Days
Unexcused


Aggregate Days
Enrolled


Attendance Rate
(%)


Indiana Agriculture and
Technology


180.00 255 122 55406.00 0.00 0.00 55406.00 1.000000


☑ APPROVE COURSE COMPLETION


Course Completion 
By School


Students with 
Dual Credits


Students with 
Applied Units


Students with 
Regular Credits


Students with 
No Course Assignment


Student Course Result Count


Total Certified Students Total Certified CoursesPass Fail Incomplete No Grade


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


111 0 3158 0 2168 0 0 1101 369 3269


Totals 111 0 3158 0 2168 0 0 1101 369 3269


☑ APPROVE STAFF EMPLOYMENT COUNTS


Staff Employment 
by Corporation Adjunct Contractual Employed Part-Time Non-Contractual Other Substitute/Temporary Tenured/Permanent Volunteer Total Certified


Indiana Agriculture and Technology 0 11 1 0 0 0 0 0 12


☑ APPROVE ADDITIONAL STUDENT INFO COUNTS


Additional
Info 


by
Corp/Grade


Level
High Ability -


General
High Ability


- Math
High Ability -


Language Arts
High Ability -


Other
Homeless -
Doubled Up


Homeless -
Sheltered


Homeless -
Unsheltered


Homeless -
Motel/Hotel


Unaccompanied
Youth


Section 504
Placement


Parent in
Military Foster


Total
Certified


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


07 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4


08 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4


09 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 0 4


10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 9


11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 1 0 6


12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 2 0 10


Totals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32 5 0 37


☑ APPROVE CERTIFIED POSITION COUNTS


Certified Positions 
Per School Teaching Staff Non-Teaching Staff


Special Education Teachers English Learner Teachers


Total CertifiedPrimary Resource Co-Teacher Consultant Primary Resource Co-Teacher Consultant


0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1


Totals 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4


☑ APPROVE HOMEBOUND


Homebound 
By Grade Level Total Enrollment Excluded Total Certified


There is no data available to display.


☑ APPROVE SPECIAL EDUCATION TERMINATION


Special
Education


Termination 
by Grade Level


01 (Transferred to
Regular


Education)


11 (Earned High
School


Diploma)


12
(Received


Certificate)


13 (Reached
Maximum Age


of 22)
14


(Deceased)
15


(Dropout)


16 (Moved, KNOWN to be
continuing in an Educational


Program ONLY)


17 (Moved, but continuing Special
Education services under IDEA in


Indiana)
Total


Enrollment Excluded
Total


Certified


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


10 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 2


11 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1
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12 0 8 0 0 0 3 0 0 11 0 11


13 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1


Totals 0 8 0 0 0 7 0 0 15 0 15


Special
Education


Termination 
by Grade Level


01 (Transferred to
Regular


Education)


11 (Earned High
School


Diploma)


12
(Received


Certificate)


13 (Reached
Maximum Age


of 22)
14


(Deceased)
15


(Dropout)


16 (Moved, KNOWN to be
continuing in an Educational


Program ONLY)


17 (Moved, but continuing Special
Education services under IDEA in


Indiana)
Total


Enrollment Excluded
Total


Certified


☑ APPROVE TITLE I COUNTS


Title I 
by


Grade
Level


Public
Schoolwide
Program 
(Title 1 A)


Private school students
participating 


(Title 1 A)


Public Targeted
Assistance Program 


(Title 1 A)


Public
Schoolwide
Program 


(Title 1 A,C)


Private school students
participating 


(Title 1 A,C)


Public Targeted
Assistance Program 


(Title 1 A,C)
Neglected and


Delinquent
Eligible Not


Served
Total


Enrollment Excluded
Total


Certified


There is no data available to display.


☑ APPROVE ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION COUNTS


 MEETING TIMES OUTCOMES TOTALS


Alternative
Education 


by
Corporation


Grade
Levels Morning Afternoon Evening


1 -
Transferred
to Regular
Education


2 -
Attained
the goals
identified


in the
students


ISP.


3 - Made
satisfactory


progress
toward
goals


identified
in the ISP.


4 - Did not
make


satisfactory
progress


toward ISP
but


remained
in the


program.


5 -
Transferred/returned


to other school
setting prior to


completing program.


6 - Dropped
out of


program,
not


returning
to any


educational
setting.


7 - Expelled
from


program,
not


returned to
any


educational
setting.


14 -
Deceased


10 -
Incarcerated


Total
Program


Enrollment


Unique
Student
Count Excluded


Total
Certified


There is no data available to display.


☑ APPROVE SPECIAL EDUCATION EVALUATION


TIMELINE COMPLIANCE CIRCUMSTANCES RELEVANT TO TIMELINE


Special
Education


Evaluation 
by School


00-
Timeline


was
met.


01-Timeline Missed,
parents refused
implementation
from First Steps


03-Student
withdrew from


school during the
evaluation


process.


05-Parent
revoked
consent


for testing.


07-Timeline
missed, student


transitioning
from First Steps


08-Timeline missed,
parent refused to


bring student in for
evaluation


99-
Timeline
missed,


other
reason


1-20 instructional days
due to implementation


of Response to
Intervention


2-20
instructional
days due to
disciplinary


action.


3-
Preparation
for transfer
from First


Steps.


4-All other,
50


instructional
day


timeline.
Total


Certified


Indiana
Agriculture


and
Technology


2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2


Totals 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2


☑ APPROVE GRADUATE REPORT COUNTS


POSTSECONDARY READY COMPETENCIES


Postsecondary Ready Competencies 
Per Graduate Type  


(Diploma)


01
(Honors


Diploma)
02


(ACT)
03


(SAT)
04


(ASVAB)


05 (State & Industry
recognized


Credential or
Certification)


06 (State,
Federal/Industry


recognized
Apprenticeship)


07 (Career-
Technical
Education


Concentrator)


08 (AP / IB / Dual
Credit /


Cambridge, or
CLEP)


09 (Locally
Created


Pathway)
10


(Waived)


NA or Did
Not


Demonstrate
Total


Certified


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


Core 40 Only (Evidence-based waiver or Waiver
from Postsecondary Readiness Competency
Requirements for Graduation Pathways)


0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 7


Core 40 only (Passed GQE or met Graduation
Pathway)


0 0 2 26 7 0 7 1 0 0 0 43


Core 40 with Academic and Technical Honors
(Passed GQE or met Graduation Pathway)


1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1


Core 40 with Academic Honors (Passed GQE or
met Graduation Pathway)


1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1


General (Evidence-based waiver) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2


General (Passed GQE or met Graduation Pathway) 0 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 5


Totals 2 0 2 28 8 0 8 2 0 9 0 59


EMPLOYABILITY SKILLS


Employability Skills 
Per Graduate Type  


(Diploma)
Project
Based


Service
Based


Work
Based NA or Did Not Demonstrate


Total
Certified


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


Core 40 Only (Evidence-based waiver or Waiver from Postsecondary Readiness Competency Requirements for Graduation
Pathways)


0 0 7 0 7


Core 40 only (Passed GQE or met Graduation Pathway) 4 7 32 0 43


Core 40 with Academic and Technical Honors (Passed GQE or met Graduation Pathway) 0 0 1 0 1


Core 40 with Academic Honors (Passed GQE or met Graduation Pathway) 0 0 1 0 1


General (Evidence-based waiver) 0 0 2 0 2


General (Passed GQE or met Graduation Pathway) 0 0 5 0 5
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Totals 4 7 48 0 59


EMPLOYABILITY SKILLS


Employability Skills 
Per Graduate Type  


(Diploma)
Project
Based


Service
Based


Work
Based NA or Did Not Demonstrate


Total
Certified


Non Graduate Type(s) Total Certified


There is no data available to display.
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☑ APPROVE MEMBERSHIP COUNTS


Membership
Per School


Grade Level


ME MV MA VIRTUALS TOTALS


01 
Residential
Enrollment


02 
Transfers


Out


03 
Cash


Transfers


04 
State


Obligations


05 
Placements


In


06 
Dual


Enrollment
Student
Count


FTE 
Dual


Enrollment


10 
Choice


Memberships


20 
Adult


Memberships


FTE 
Adult


Learner
Virtual


"Y"
Virtual


"N"
Total


Enrollment Excluded
Total


Certified


Indiana Agriculture and Technology


07 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 26 1 25


08 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 27 2 25


09 37 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37 0 39 2 37


10 76 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 76 0 76 0 76


11 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 70 0 72 2 70


12 75 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 75 0 76 1 75


13 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 7 1 6


Totals 314 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 314 0 323 9 314


☑ APPROVE CALENDAR


Calendar / Instructional Time 
by School Calendar Type


INSTRUCTIONAL TIME


Waiver
Days


Virtual Asynchronous
Days


Virtual Synchronous
Days


In Person Instructional
Days


Total
Days Minutes


Indiana Agriculture and
Technology


Student Specific Non-
Compulsory


0 0.00 0.00 180.00 180.00 64800


CFO Signature: [sig|req|signer1|CFO Signature]


Superintendent Signature: [sig|req|signer2|Super Signature]


Doc ID: b8c38e2be5b6d270185118f2cdb5ac24530b99ea







Audit Trail


Title



File Name



Document ID



Audit Trail Date Format



Status


1095050000-September 2022-CertificationSummaryReport


1095050000-Septem...ummaryReport.html


b8c38e2be5b6d270185118f2cdb5ac24530b99ea


MM / DD / YYYY


Signed


This document was signed on dataexchange.doe.in.gov


09 / 28 / 2022


10:34:29 UTC-4


Sent for signature to CFO (noreply1@doe.in.gov) and


Superintendent (noreply2@doe.in.gov) from cgipson@doe.in.gov


IP: 40.71.92.32


09 / 28 / 2022


10:36:26 UTC-4


noreply2@doe.in.gov was changed to kmarsh@indiana.ag after


requester reassignment.


IP: 40.71.92.32


09 / 28 / 2022


10:36:28 UTC-4


Viewed by Superintendent (kmarsh@indiana.ag)


IP: 107.216.167.248


09 / 28 / 2022


10:37:20 UTC-4


Signed by Superintendent (kmarsh@indiana.ag)


IP: 107.216.167.248


09 / 28 / 2022


11:15:47 UTC-4


noreply1@doe.in.gov was changed to asutherlin@indiana.ag


after requester reassignment.


IP: 40.71.223.14


09 / 28 / 2022


11:15:49 UTC-4


Viewed by CFO (asutherlin@indiana.ag)


IP: 107.216.167.248







Audit Trail


Title



File Name



Document ID



Audit Trail Date Format



Status


09 / 28 / 2022


11:16:33 UTC-4


Signed by CFO (asutherlin@indiana.ag)


IP: 107.216.167.248


The document has been completed.09 / 28 / 2022


11:16:33 UTC-4


1095050000-September 2022-CertificationSummaryReport


1095050000-Septem...ummaryReport.html


b8c38e2be5b6d270185118f2cdb5ac24530b99ea


MM / DD / YYYY


Signed


This document was signed on dataexchange.doe.in.gov





		Certification Summary Report

		☑ APPROVE MEMBERSHIP COUNTS

		☑ APPROVE CALENDAR





				2022-09-28T15:16:41+0000

		San Francisco

		Tamper Proofing












 


____________________________________________________________________________________ 


www.cpadonovan.com 
Avon | 5151 E. US Hwy 36, Avon, IN 46123 | 317.745.6411 


Indianapolis | 9292 N. Meridian Street, Suite 150, Indianapolis, IN 46260 | 317.844.8300 


 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc.  
 
We audited the financial statements of Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. d/b/a Indiana Agriculture &  
Technology school (the “School”) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and issued our 
report thereon dated December 11, 2023. Professional standards require us to communicate to you the 
following information related to our audits. 
 
Significant Audit Matters 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the School are described in Notes 1 and 2 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2023. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the School for the year which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period.  
 
We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.  
 
Significant Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. We identified no particularly sensitive accounting estimates during the audits.   
  
Significant Disclosures 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. We identified no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures. 


 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audits 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audits. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
  
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audits, other than 
those which are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management corrected all such misstatements. A listing of the corrected misstatements identified as a 
result of our audits is included on page 3. 
  
Disagreements with Management 
  
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, which could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audits. 
 
Management Representations 
  
We requested certain representations from management which were provided in the management 
representation letter dated December 11, 2023. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditors’ opinion which may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors. These discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to 
our retention. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors, management of the School, the 
School’s authorizer, and the Indiana State Board of Accounts and is not intended to be, and should not be, 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
DONOVAN 


 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
December 11, 2023 
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Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc.  
Corrected Adjustments 
Audit of the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
 


Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 101     
PAJE <101> To remove amortization expense on leases. 


    
46000.755 Accumulated Amortization  135,539.00    
80000.000 Amortization Expense     135,539.00  


Total   135,539.00   135,539.00  


      
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 102     
PAJE <102> To adjust right-of-use assets. 


    
26200.441 26200 -+ Maintenance of Building:26200.441 Office Rent  23,330.00    
26200.441 26200 -+ Maintenance of Building:26200.441 Office Rent  74,046.00    


26200.441.01 26200 -+ Maintenance of Building:26200.441 Farm rent  21,310.00    
26200.441.01 26200 -+ Maintenance of Building:26200.441 Farm rent  39,928.00    


52600.832 52600.832 Loan interest     44,640.00  
DCPA008 Right of Use assets:41000.710 ROU Asset - Farm     39,928.00  
DCPA014 Right of Use assets:45100.720 ROU asset - OFFICE     74,046.00  


Total   158,614.00   158,614.00  
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Independent Auditors’ Report 


 
 
The Board of Directors 
Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 


We audited the accompanying financial statements of Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. d/b/a 
Indiana Agriculture & Technology School (the “School”), which comprise the statements of financial 
position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of activities and change in net assets 
(deficit), functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 
 


In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
 


The School’s financial statements do not disclose a potential liability owed to the State of Indiana 
pertaining to issues with its charter status. On January 25, 2021, a State Board of Accounts Special 
Investigation Report was issued. The report found the School owed the State of Indiana $329,510 for 
reimbursement of overpayment of various forms of tuition support. The School was deemed to have 
been overpaid due to operating a virtual charter school rather than a brick and mortar charter school. 
Virtual charter schools are paid a lower rate for tuition support funding than brick and mortar charter 
schools. The School is in the process of appealing the findings of the State Board of Accounts Special 
Investigation Report. In our opinion, the recording and disclosure of this information is required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 
 


We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  
 


We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe the audit evidence 
we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 


In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are issued. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements 
 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
including our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 


In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 


 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 


to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 


 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 


 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 


 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 


 


We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters we identified during the audit. 
 
DONOVAN 


 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
December 11, 2023 







2023 2022


CURRENT ASSETS


Cash 164,897$         104,027$         


Grants receivable 20,050 47,605             


Prepaid expenses -                       29,795


Total current assets 184,947           181,427           


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT


Leasehold improvements 139,619 139,619           


Equipment 16,515 16,515


Vehicles 69,500 -                       


Less: accumulated depreciation (67,641)            (42,759)            


Property and equipment, net 157,993           113,375           


OTHER ASSETS


Operating lease right-of-use assets 793,354 907,328


Security deposit 5,057               5,057               


Total other assets 798,411           912,385           


TOTAL ASSETS 1,141,351$      1,207,187$      


CURRENT LIABILITIES


Current portion of operating lease liability 121,805$         113,975$         


Current portion of note payable 12,707 -                       


Accounts payable and accrued expenses 271,744 128,577           


Line of credit 59,232 -                       


Total current liabilities 465,488           242,552           


LONG-TERM LIABILITIES


Operating lease liability, net of current portion 671,549 793,353


Note payable, net of current portion 46,468 -                       


Total long-term liabilities 718,017 793,353


Total liabilities 1,183,505        1,035,905        


NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS (42,154)            171,282           


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 1,141,351$      1,207,187$      


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)


INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC.


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL


STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION


June 30, 2023 and 2022


ASSETS


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2023 2022


REVENUE AND SUPPORT


State education support 2,146,766$      1,825,075$      


Grant revenue 196,010           445,686           


Student fees 18,320 7,450               


Contributions 4,085               87,998


Other income 14,265             32,316             


Total revenue and support 2,379,446        2,398,525        


EXPENSES


Program services 1,750,663        1,740,753        


Management and general 842,219           649,301           


Total expenses 2,592,882        2,390,054        


CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (213,436)          8,471               


NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 171,282           162,811           


NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR (42,154)$          171,282$         


INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC.


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL


STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Program 
Services


Management 
and General Total


Program 
Services


Management 
and General Total


Salaries and wages 341,279$         495,167$         836,446$         304,336$         377,796$         682,132$         


Online curriculum services 553,614           -                       553,614           525,910           -                       525,910           


Professional services 193,496           85,233             278,729           303,212           54,874             358,086           


Occupancy 217,645           -                       217,645           172,974           -                       172,974           


Repairs and maintenance 213,618           -                       213,618           173,983           -                       173,983           


Employee benefits 65,686 60,994 126,680           34,718 37,026 71,744             


Supplies 77,208             21,928             99,136             147,193           25,723             172,916           


Advertising -                       89,139 89,139             -                       48,145 48,145             


Information technology services 46,871 -                       46,871             32,960 -                       32,960             


Travel 3,323               32,494             35,817             5,871               34,368             40,239             


Depreciation 24,881 -                       24,881             14,785 -                       14,785             


Insurance -                       19,011             19,011             -                       15,507             15,507             


Interest -                       11,330             11,330             -                       -                       -                       


Staff development 2,454               -                       2,454               1,047               -                       1,047               


Authorizer oversight fee -                       1,061 1,061               -                       43,399 43,399             


Student transportation -                       -                       -                       2,425               -                       2,425               


Other 10,588             25,862 36,450             21,339             12,463 33,802             


Total functional expenses 1,750,663$      842,219$         2,592,882$      1,740,753$      649,301$         2,390,054$      


2023 2022


INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC.


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL


STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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2023 2022


OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Change in net assets (213,436)$        8,471$             


Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets


to net cash provided by operating activities:


Depreciation 24,881             14,785             


Changes in certain assets and liabilities:


Grants receivable 27,555             (32,736)            


Prepaid expenses 29,795             9,201               


Accounts payable and accrued expenses 143,167           56,637             


Net cash provided by operating activities 11,962             56,358             


INVESTING ACTIVITIES


Purchase of property and equipment -                       (116,994)          


  


FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Net payments on note payable (10,324)            -                       


Net proceeds from line of credit 59,232             -                       


Net cash provided by financing activities 48,908             -                       


NET CHANGE IN CASH 60,870             (60,636)            


CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 104,027           164,663           


CASH, END OF YEAR 164,897$         104,027$         


SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION


Purchase of vehicle financed through note payable 68,250$           -$                     


Cash paid for interest 11,330             -                       


INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC.


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL


STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC. 


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 


General – Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. d/b/a Indiana Agriculture & Technology School 
(the “School”) is a public benefit not-for-profit organization incorporated under the laws of the 
State of Indiana and operates a public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24. The 
School is sponsored by the University of Southern Indiana (“USI”). The charter remains in effect 
until June 30, 2028 and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. The School instructs students 
using a combination of virtual learning technologies and live hands-on experiences in agriculture, 
conservation, and environmental sciences. The School served approximately 310 students in 
grades seventh through twelfth during the 2022-2023 school year (265 students during the 2021-
2022 school year).  
 
Financial Statement Presentation – The School reports its financial position and activities 
according to two classes of net assets: 
 


 net assets without donor restrictions, which include unrestricted resources available for the 
operating objectives of the School; and 


 net assets with donor restrictions, which represent resources restricted by donors for specific 
time or purpose. 


 
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the School had only net assets without donor restrictions.  


 
Basis of Accounting and Use of Estimates – The financial statements of the School have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
affecting certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash consists of cash held in bank accounts and cash equivalents 
consist of short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 
There were no cash equivalents at June 30, 2023 and 2022.  


  
Grants Receivable – Grants receivable relate primarily to activities funded under federal grants 
and legislation enacted by the State of Indiana. The School believes it is operating in compliance 
with regulatory requirements and as such no allowance for doubtful accounts is deemed 
necessary. 


  
Property and Equipment – Purchases of assets and expenditures which materially increase value 
or extend useful lives are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine 
maintenance and repairs and minor replacement costs and equipment purchases are charged to 
expense as incurred. Right-of-use assets acquired as a part of operating or finance lease 
arrangements are capitalized and are included in the statements of financial position. 


 
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets (10 years for 
leasehold improvements; 5 years for equipment; 5 years for vehicles) using the straight-line 
method. 







INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC. 


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 


 
Taxes on Income – The School received a determination from the U.S. Treasury Department 
stating it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a 
tax-exempt organization; however, the School would be subject to tax on income unrelated to its 
tax-exempt purpose. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, no accounting for federal and 
state income taxes is included in the accompanying financial statements. 


 
Professional accounting standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it is more 
likely than not the tax position would not be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax 
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax 
liability greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting 
the more-likely-than-not test, no tax liability is recorded. The School examined this issue and 
determined there are no material contingent tax liabilities or questionable tax positions. Tax years 
ended after June 30, 2019 are open to audit for both federal and state purposes. 


 
Subsequent Events – The School evaluated subsequent events through December 11, 2023, the 
date these financial statements were available to be issued. Events occurring through that date 
have been evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related 
disclosures would be required. 
 


 
NOTE 2 - REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 


Revenue Recognition Policy – Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the 
Indiana Charter Schools Act. Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation 
to the funding received by other public schools in the same geographic area. Funding from the 
State of Indiana is based on enrollment and paid in monthly installments in July through June 
coinciding with the academic school year. Revenue is recognized in the year in which the 
educational services are rendered. 
 
A portion of the School’s revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants. Accordingly, the 
School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amount of costs and expenses at the time they 
are incurred. Incurring approved costs under the grant is considered satisfaction of the 
performance obligations. 


 
The School also receives contributions and grants from other agencies and individuals, which are 
recorded in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements. 


 
Student fees are recognized in the year in which the services are rendered. 
 
Disaggregation of Revenue – Revenue is disaggregated on the statements of activities and change 
in net assets (deficit). 


 
 
 







INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC. 


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022  
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NOTE 3 - LEASES 
 


Operating Leases – In October 2021, the School entered a ten-year lease for a 14.89 acre farm 
property in Trafalgar, Indiana. The property includes a farmhouse and outbuildings. Monthly 
lease payments are $5,257 over the life of the lease. The School determined the lease falls under 
ASU 2016-02 as an operating lease and, therefore, using an imputed interest rate of 5.25% (2.00% 
above the prime rate at the date of the lease commencement), recorded an operating lease right-of-
use asset of $490,000 and a corresponding operating lease liability for the same amount. Lease 
expense under the farm lease was $63,087 and $47,316 during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively.  
 
In June 2022, the School entered a five-year operating lease for its main office suite. Monthly rent 
payments begin at $8,293 and increase gradually over the term of the lease to $9,332. The School 
determined the lease falls under ASU 2016-02 as an operating lease and, therefore, using an 
imputed interest rate of 6.75% (2.00% above the prime rate at the date of the lease 
commencement), recorded an operating lease right-of-use asset of $448,065 and corresponding 
operating lease liability for the same amount. Lease expense under the lease was $99,515 during 
the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
The School also leases a portable classroom under a short-term lease. Short-term leases are 
expensed over the term of the lease as payments are made. Components of lease costs are 
included in occupancy on the statements of functional expenses and are as follows for the years 
ended June 30: 
 


  2023  2022 
     
Operating leases cost $ 181,628 $ 140,467 
Short-term lease cost  23,400  23,400 
     


 Total lease cost $ 205,028 $ 163,867 
 


Future minimum payments under operating, non-cancellable leases are as follows for the years 
ending June 30: 
 


2024 $    165,626 
2025     168,692 
2026     171,841 
2027     175,072 
2028       63,087 
Thereafter     205,037 
        949,355 
Less: imputed interest  (156,001) 
Total lease liability      793,354 
Less: current portion     (121,805) 
   
Long-term portion $    671,549 







INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC. 


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022  
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NOTE 4 - LINE OF CREDIT 


 
The School has a $100,000 revolving line of credit with a commercial bank with no maturity date. 
Drawings against the line of credit bear interest at the prime rate plus 1.84% (a total of 10.09% at 
June 30, 2023) and are secured by all assets of the School. The balance outstanding on the line of 
credit was $59,232 as of June 30, 2023.  
 
 


NOTE 5 - NOTE PAYABLE  
 


The School has a note payable with PNC Bank for vehicles in the amount of $68,250. The note 
bears an interest of 5.5%. The balance outstanding on the note payable was $59,175 as of June 
30, 2023. 
 
Principal maturities of the note payable are as follows for the years ending June 30: 
 


2024 $ 12,707 
2025  13,424 
2026  14,181 
2027  14,981 
2028  3,882 
   
 $ 59,175 


 
 
NOTE 6 - LIQUIDITY 
 


Financial assets held by the School consist of cash and grants receivable totaling $184,947 and 
$151,632 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, all of which are available to meet cash needs 
for general expenditures within one year.  


 
From time to time, the School receives donor restricted contributions. Because donor restrictions 
require resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the School must maintain 
sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, financial assets may not be 
available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the School’s liquidity management, 
it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, 
and other obligations come due. The School has access to a line of credit with approximately 
$41,000 of available borrowings as of June 30, 2023 (Note 4). 


 
 
NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTIES 
 


For the year ended June 30, 2022, the School’s Director of Enrollment/Registrar was the son of a 
member of the  Board of Directors. 


 
 







INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC. 


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022  
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NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS 
 


In August 2021, the School entered a charter agreement with the USI. Under this charter, the 
School agrees to pay USI an annual administrative fee equal to 3% of state tuition payments 
received. For the year ended June 30, 2023, USI did not charge authorizer fees. Authorizer fees 
will resume during the year ending June 30, 2024. Prior to August 2021, the School was 
sponsored by Nineveh-Hensley-Jackson United School Corporation under the same fee structure. 
Payments under these agreements were $1,061 and $43,399 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022, respectively. 


 
The School contracted with Edgenuity, Inc. to provide online instructional services for its 
students. The contract is for a three-year term through May 31, 2024. Contract payments to 
Edgenuity were $549,473 and $463,435 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
In October 2021, the School entered a ten-year agreement with K & L Walker Enterprises, LLC to 
provide farm operations and property management services related to the leased farm property 
(Note 3). Contract payment to K & L Walker Enterprises, LLC were $135,262 and $95,600 for 
the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 


 
 
NOTE 9 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 


The School provides educational instruction to students residing in Indiana and is subject to the 
risks of economic and competitive forces at work within this geographic area. 
 
The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the State of Indiana and grants awarded 
under federal programs. Changes in state or federal legislation could significantly affect the 
School. Additionally, the School is subject to monitoring and audit by state and federal agencies. 
Those examinations may result in additional liability to be imposed on the School. 


 
Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of receivables from the State of Indiana. In addition, deposits maintained at PNC Bank 
and are insured up to the FDIC insurance limit. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







INDIANA AGRICULTURE EDUCATION, INC. 


d/b/a INDIANA AGRICULTURE & TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 


The School provides retirement benefits covering substantially all full-time employees. 
Retirement benefits are provided by the Indiana State Teachers’ Retirement Fund (“TRF”), which 
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan governed by the State of 
Indiana and administered by the Indiana Public Retirement System (“INPRS”) Board. 
Contribution requirements of plan members are determined annually by the INPRS Board.  
 
The School contributed 6% of compensation for eligible teaching personnel to TRF during the 
year ended June 30 2023 (5.5% during the year ended June 30, 2022), and 11.2% for other 
employees to PERF for both years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. Should the School elect to 
withdraw from TRF or PERF, it could be subject to a withdrawal fee. The School’s contributions 
represent an insignificant percentage of the total contributions received by TRF and PERF. As of 
June 30, 2022 (the latest year reported), TRF and PERF were approximately 92% and 82% 
funded, respectively.  


 
Retirement plan expense was $5,069 and $1,100 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 


 
 
NOTE 11 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE REPORTING 
 


The costs of providing educational activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of activities and change in net assets. Accordingly, certain expenses have been 
allocated between program services and management and general expenses. Salaries and wages 
and employee benefits are allocated based on time estimates. All other expenses are directly 
applied to program services or management and general.  
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The report presented herein was prepared in addition to another official report prepared for the School 
as listed below: 
 


Supplemental Audit Report of Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. 
d/b/a Indiana Agriculture & Technology School 


 
The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the Indiana 
State Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools Performed by Private 
Examiners pertaining to matters addressed in its Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines 
Manual for Indiana Charter Schools. 
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Office  Official  Term 
     


President of Board of Directors  Allan Sutherlin  07/01/22 – 06/30/23 
     


Chief Academic Officer  Keith Marsh  07/01/22 – 06/30/23 







 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


www.cpadonovan.com 
Avon | 5151 E. US Hwy 36, Avon, IN 46123 | 317.745.6411 


Indianapolis | 9292 N. Meridian Street, Suite 150, Indianapolis, IN 46260 | 317.844.8300 


 
 


The Board of Directors 
Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. 
 
We audited the financial statements of Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. d/b/a Indiana Agriculture & 
Technology School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and issued our report 
thereon dated December 11, 2023. As part of our audit, we tested the School’s compliance with 
provisions of the Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools 
issued by the Indiana State Board of Accounts and related provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements. Reported in the Audit Results and Comments are matters where we believe the School 
was not in compliance with those provisions. 
      
DONOVAN 


 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
December 11, 2023
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RECEIPTS AND DEPOSITS 
 
We tested a total of twenty-five receipts from the receipt book. The School did not issue individual 
receipts at the time of payment for any of the receipts tested. 
 
The form is to be prenumbered by the printing supplier in duplicate, five receipts to the page.  A receipt 
must be written on the form each time any money is received by the charter school regardless of whether 
it is in the form of cash, check, money order, bank card/credit card, EFT (all on which must be indicated 
as payment type and amount) or other negotiable instrument. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance 
Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 2) 
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The contents of this report were discussed on December 5, 2023 with Keith Marsh (Chief Academic 
Officer) and Allan Sutherlin (President of Board of Directors). The Official Response has been made a 
part of this report and may be found on page 5. 







 


 


 
 


 


 


December 11, 2023 
 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
This letter will confirm that the item identified in our draft supplemental audit report has 
been addressed as follows: 
 


1. A digital electronic receipt will be provided in those instances where a physical 
receipt was not issued. 


 
 
Sincerely,  
Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. d/b/a Indiana Agriculture and Technology School 
 
 


 
________________________________ 
Allan Sutherlin 
Board President 
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December 11, 2023 
 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
This letter will confirm that the item identified in our draft supplemental audit report has 
been addressed as follows: 
 


1. A digital electronic receipt will be provided in those instances where a physical 
receipt was not issued. 


 
 
Sincerely,  
Indiana Agriculture Education, Inc. d/b/a Indiana Agriculture and Technology School 
 
 


 
________________________________ 
Allan Sutherlin 
Board President 
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PURPOSE:  
 
 
The purpose of this Authorizer Compliance Report is to provide a snapshot of the 
benchmarks pursuant to IC 20-24-9-1 and the required contents as set forth by IC 20-
24-9-2.  Those items are included for the public’s reference below:   
 
IC 20-24-9-1Annual report to department 
     Sec. 1. (a) An authorizer that has established a charter school shall submit an annual report to the department and 
the state board for informational and research purposes. The authorizer shall make the annual report available on the 
authorizer's Internet web site. 
     (b) The department and state board shall make all annual reports submitted under subsection (a) available on the 
department's and state board's Internet web sites. 


[Pre-2005 Elementary and Secondary Education Recodification Citation: 20-5.5-9-1.] 
As added by P.L.1-2005, SEC.8. Amended by P.L.91-2011, SEC.21; P.L.33-2014, SEC.2; P.L.5-2015, SEC.45. 


  
IC 20-24-9-2Annual report; contents 
     Sec. 2. An annual report under this chapter must contain the following information: 


(1) Results of statewide assessment program measures. 
(2) Student growth and improvement data for each authorized school. 
(3) Attendance rates for each authorized school. In the case of a virtual charter school, the virtual charter 
school must include the methodology used to determine attendance rate with the attendance rate. 
(4) Graduation rates (if appropriate), including attainment of Indiana diplomas with a Core 40 designation and 
Indiana diplomas with Core 40 with academic honors designations for each authorized school. 
(5) Student enrollment data for each authorized school, including the following: 


(A) The number of students enrolled. 
(B) The number of students expelled. 


(6) Status of the authorizer's charter schools, identifying each of the authorizer's charter schools that are in the 
following categories: 


(A) Approved but not yet open. 
(B) Open and operating. 
(C) Closed or having a charter that was not renewed, including: 


(i) the year closed or not renewed; and 
(ii) the reason for the closure or nonrenewal. 


(7) Names of the authorizer's board members or ultimate decision making body. 
(8) Evidence that the authorizer is in compliance with IC 20-24-2.2-1.5. 
(9) A report summarizing the total amount of administrative fees collected by the authorizer and how the fees 
were expended, if applicable. 
(10) Total amount of other fees or funds not included in the report under subdivision (9) received by the 
authorizer from a charter school and how the fees or funds were expended. 
(11) The most recent audits for each authorized school submitted to the authorizer under IC 5-11-1-9. 
(12) For a virtual charter school, the student engagement requirements or policies. 


 
 
The information provided within this report is specific to the Indiana Agriculture and 
Technology School.  No other charters were authorized by the University of Southern 
Indiana during the 2021 – 2022 academic calendar. 
 
 
 
 
 



http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-9-1

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-9-1

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-9-1

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-2.2-1.5

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#5-11-1-9
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INTRODUCTION: 
 
 
Charter Schools are independent, state funded, public schools that are open to all 
students.  Students do not pay tuition to attend these schools.  The purpose of charter 
schools as defined by IC 20-24-2-1 is the following:  
 


• (1) Serve the different learning styles and needs of public-school students. 
• (2) Offer public school students appropriate and innovative choices. 
• (3) Provide varied opportunities for professional educators. 
• (4) Allow public schools freedom and flexibility in exchange for exceptional levels 


of accountability. 
• (5) Provide parents, students, community members, and local entities with an 


expanded opportunity for involvement in the public school system. 
 


In Indiana, charter schools may be authorized by a limited number of entities, such as 
governing boards of a nonprofit college or university that provides a four (4) year 
educational program for which it awards a baccalaureate or more advanced degree, 
including all of the listed entities in IC 20-24-1-2.5(5).  School Corporations under IC 20-
24-2.2-1.2(b) provides that a governing body of a school corporation can register with 
the state board for charter authority within the attendance area of the corporation as 
well.  
 
Overview of the Indiana Agriculture and Technology School: 
 
The Indiana Agriculture and Technology School, having completed its second year with 
student enrollment, is a public charter school using cutting-edge, applied learning 
technologies blended with live, hands-on experiences in agricultural sciences and 
technology.  The school provides students in grades 7 thru 12 with layers of 
accountability to ensure they stay on a path to success.  Some of the highlights of the 
learning environment include: 
 


• Student Learning Advocates monitor student activity, progress and work with the 
student and their family. 


 
• Each course has a lead teacher who provides content review, assessments, and 


timely feedback. 
 


• Concept and Success Coaches tutor, assist and mentor students in the learning 
environment. 
 


• CTE Certified Agriculture Teacher(s) lead students throughout the hands-on, 
practical learning opportunities. 
 



http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-2-1

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-1-2.5

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-2.2-1.2

http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/020/#20-24-2.2-1.2
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• Dual Credit opportunities are provided through Ivy Tech in a variety of courses 
for students to earn college-ready credit. 
 


• State-Wide MOU partnership with Ivy Tech Indiana. 
 


• Four Regional Campuses located throughout Indiana which provides more 
access to students to participate in on-campus Project Based Learning activities. 
Our southern region houses a program that allows students to attend school in-
person Monday through Friday. This school is located on the campus of the 
University of Southern Indiana, who serves as our authorizer. 
 


• We are expanding our program to Fort Wayne area like our program in 
Evansville. Students will be attending a Monday through Friday program on 
campus. 
 


• Expanded Drone Program for students to earn their Part 107 Certification.  
 


• Students can earn their private pilot’s license through the Ivy Tech Aviation 
program. 
 


 
www.indiana.ag 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 



http://www.indiana.ag/
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Component Review 1:   
 


Results of Statewide Tests and End of Course Assessments 
 


Standardized Tests and End of Course Assessment Data 
Grade 7 English/Language Arts 


School Year ELA Below 
Proficiency 


ELA  
Approaching 
Proficiency 
 


ELA  
At 
Proficiency 
 


ELA  
Above Proficiency 
 


ELA 
Total Proficient 
 


ELA 
Total Tested 
 


ELA 
Proficient % 
 
 


2019 *** *** *** *** *** 8 *** 
2020 COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  
2021 8 5 4 0 4 17 23.5% 
2022 8 5 1 3 4 15 26.7% 
2023 19 9 1 0 1 29 3.4% 


*** Indicates less than 10 students in groups. 
COVID 19 YEAR – No Testing 
 
Grade 8 English/Language Arts 


School Year ELA Below 
Proficiency 


ELA  
Approaching 
Proficiency 
 


ELA  
At 
Proficiency 
 


ELA  
Above Proficiency 
 


ELA 
Total Proficient 
 


ELA 
Total Tested 
 


ELA 
Proficient % 
 
 


2019 8 4 3 1 4 16 25.0% 
2020 COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  
2021 21 13 8 1 9 43 20.9% 
2022 15 10 3 0 3 28 10.7% 
2023 17 1 4 1 5 23 21.7% 


COVID 19 YEAR – No Testing 
 
Grade 7/8 Total English/Language Arts 


School Year ELA Below 
Proficiency 


ELA  
Approaching 
Proficiency 
 


ELA  
At 
Proficiency 
 


ELA  
Above Proficiency 
 


ELA 
Total Proficient 
 


ELA 
Total Tested 
 


ELA 
Proficient % 
 
 


2019 14 4 5 1 6 24 25.0% 
2020 COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  
2021 29 18 12 1 13 60 21.7% 
2022 23 13 4 3 7 43 16.3% 
2023 36 10 5 1 6 52 11.5% 
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COVID 19 YEAR – No Testing 
Grade 7 Math 


School Year Math 
Below 
Proficiency 


Math  
Approaching 
Proficiency 
 


Math  
At 
Proficiency 
 


Math  
Above Proficiency 
 


Math 
Total Proficient 
 


Math 
Total Tested 
 


Math 
Proficient % 
 
 


2019 *** *** *** *** *** 8 *** 
2020 COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  COVID 19  
2021 8 7 2 0 2 17 11.8% 
2022 10 4 0 1 1 15 6.7% 
2023 25 4 0 0 0 29 0.0% 


*** Indicates less than 10 students in groups. 
COVID 19 YEAR – No Testing 
 
Grade 8 Math 


School Year Math 
Below 
Proficiency 


Math  
Approaching 
Proficiency 
 


Math  
At 
Proficiency 
 


Math  
Above Proficiency 
 


Math 
Total Proficient 
 


Math 
Total Tested 
 


Math 
Proficient % 
 
 


2019 11 5 0 0 0 16 0.0% 
2020 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 
2021 29 11 2 1 3 43 7.0% 
2022 23 2 2 1 3 28 10.7% 
2023 21 2 0 0 0 23 0.0% 


COVID 19 YEAR – No Testing 
 
Grade 7/8 Total Math 


School Year Math 
Below 
Proficiency 


Math  
Approaching 
Proficiency 
 


Math  
At 
Proficiency 
 


Math  
Above Proficiency 
 


Math 
Total Proficient 
 


Math 
Total Tested 
 


Math 
Proficient % 
 
 


2019 17 6 1 0 1 24 4.2% 
2020 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 COVID 19 
2021 37 18 4 1 5 60 8.3% 
2022 33 6 2 2 4 43 9.3% 
2023 46 6 0 0 0 52 0.0% 


COVID 19 YEAR – No Testing 
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ASVAB  


School Yr Total Students Passed % Passed DNP % Did Not Pass 
2019-2020 34 27 79% 7 21% 
2020-2021 49 31 63% 18 37% 
2021-2022 86 40 47% 46 53% 
2022-2023 41 19 46% 22 54% 
4 Year Total 169 98 58% 71 42% 


 
SAT TEST 
 


School Year Total Students  
11th Grade 


Total Participants % Participants 


2021-2022 68 58 85.3% 
2022-2023 60 70 85.7% 


*Data Compiled from IDOE GPS System – SAT Performance 
 


Component Review 2:   
 


Student Growth and Improvement Data for each Authorized School 
 
Results Driven Accountability (RDA) data used to monitor the proficiency of 
delivering instructional services and opportunities for growth to students within 
special education indicated for 2021 – 2022 the school was in compliance.   
 
In addition, the school has shared and reviewed the administration of the ASVAB 
test model, showing preparation and growth necessary to serve in the armed 
forces.  That data is summarized below for 2021 – 2022.   
 
Lastly, the school has reviewed the Indiana Department of Education’s processes 
for implementing a formative assessment using the department’s approved list 
and process.  The school will implement an assessment program from our 
curriculum provider for the 2022 – 2023 school year, beginning with grade 7 – 9 
students.  The focus will be on English and Mathematics only. 
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 Component Review 3:   
 


Attendance Rate for each Authorized School 
 
 


School Year Attendance Rate 
2018 - 2019 94.9% 
2019 - 2020 50.0% 
2020 -2021 97.0% 
2021 - 2022 93.1% 
2022 - 2023 96.8% 


This includes 352 students reported having attended the school over the 180-day 
attendance period. Documentation is included in Appendix A:  Attendance 
Summary Sign-off Sheet. 
 


Component Review 4:   
 


Graduation Rates for each Authorized School Rate019 Graduation 
Rate 


School Year Graduation Rate Number of Graduates 


2019 46.15% 6 


2020 50.00% 22 


2021 30.36% 17 


2022 44.44% 24 


2023 59.14% 55 
2019 Graduation Rate 


  2023 Core 40, Academic Honors, General Diploma Awarded 
 


Indiana Diploma Students 
Awarded 


% of Total Diplomas 


Core 40 with Academic Honors 2 3.5% 
Core 40 with Technical Honors 1 1.7% 


Core 40 47 82.5% 
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General 7 12.3% 
Total Students 57 100% 


 
Component Review 5:   
 


Student Enrollment Data for each Authorized School 
 


Grade Level 
(ADM Count 
Day Data) 


Enrollment 
ME 1 Count Day 


September 16, 2022 


Enrollment  
ME 2 Count Day 
February 1, 2023 


 


7 25 29 
8 25 26 
9 37 41 
10 76 73 
11 70 72 
12 75 60 
13 6 4 


TOTAL 314 305 
 
The ADM Sign-off sheets are included as documentation.  They are located in the 
Appendix as Exhibit ‘B’ for review. 
 


Component Review 5, Continued:   
 


2022 – 2023 Student Enrollment Data and Additional Data for each 
Authorized School 


 
Category Student Enrollment - 279 
Number of Students Expelled 0 
Number of Incidents Involving SRO 0 
Number of Students Restrained or Secluded 0 


 
 







10 | P a g e  
 


Component Review 6:   
 


Status of Authorizer’s Charter Schools SY 2022 - 2023 
 


 Approved, but not yet open = 0 
 


 Open and Operating = 2 
 


o Indiana Agriculture and Technology School 
o Springville Community Academy 


 
 Closed or having a charter that was not renewed = 0 


 
 


Component Review 7:   
 


Authorizer’s Board Members and Decision Making Body 
 


• Dr. Mohammed Khayum, Provost at University of Southern Indiana 
• Steve Bridges, Vice President for Finance and Administration at University of 


Southern Indiana 
 


 
Indiana Agriculture and Technology School Board (Reference Information) 


 
 


• Mr. Allan Sutherlin, President 
 


• Mr. Peter Beering, Secretary  
 


• Mr. Terry Anker, Board Member 
 


• Mr. Dan Devlin, Board Member 
 


• Mr. Johnathan Pope, Board Member 
 


• Mr. Keith A. Marsh, Executive Director 
 


• Mr. Martin B. Kirkwood, Principal/Chief Academic Officer 
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Component Review 8:   
 


Authorizer’s Acknowledgement of Authorizing Practices  
 


 
The University of Southern Indiana acknowledges the following 
organizations for their contribution in improving authorizing practices. 
 
 National Association of Charter School Authorizers (NACSA) 
 Indiana Department of Education Charter School Office 
 Indiana State Board of Education 
 Indiana Public Charter School Association 
 School Works 


 
The University will continue to seek out resources and participate in 
opportunities to review and refine its authorizing practices. 


 
Component Review 9:   
 


Collection of Administrative Fees and their Expenditure 
 


 $4,197.23 collected as Authorizer Administrative Fees for  
2022 – 2023 


 
Appendix C represents the Fund History Report accounting for funds from the 
Authorizer’s accounting software (Komputrol).  The second document provided by 
IATS correlates amounts disbursed versus amounts received.  The totals between 
the two documents are equal to the amount listed above. 
 


Component Review 10:   
 


Collection of ‘Other’ Funds and their Expenditure 
 


 No other funds were collected by the Authorizer during the    
2022 – 2023 school year.   


 
Component Review 11:   
 
Most Recent Audit of Authorized School Submitted Under IC 5-11-1-9 


 
Appendix D represents the Complete Audit for the 2022 - 2023 school accounting 
for funds from the Indiana Agriculture and Technology School. 



http://iga.in.gov/legislative/laws/2019/ic/titles/005/#5-11-1-9
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Appendix A: Attendance Summary Sign-off Sheet 
 
Appendix B:  Membership Summary (Fall and Spring) Sign-off Sheets 
 
Appendix C: Authorizer Funds Collected Sheet 
 
Appendix D: Current Financial Audit 
 
Appendix E represents the Supplemental Audit for the 2022 – 2023 school 
accounting for funds from the Indiana Agriculture and Technology School. 
 
Appendix F represents the State Board of Accounts Audit Review Notice (2022 – 
2023) school accounting for funds from the Indiana Agriculture and Technology 
School. 








 


 


 
 


 


 
 
 
 


 


SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC. 
d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


Together with Independent Auditors’ Report 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 
 


 


 


 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


 Page 


INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT .......................................................................................  1 - 2 


 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  


Statement of Financial Position ......................................................................................................  3 
  
Statement of Activities and Change in Net Assets ..........................................................................  4 
  
Statement of Functional Expenses ..................................................................................................  5 
  
Statement of Cash Flows .................................................................................................................  6 
  
Notes to the Financial Statements ...................................................................................................  7 - 12 


 


OTHER REPORT .............................................................................................................................  13 


 


 
 







 


 
______________________________________________________________________________ 


www.cpadonovan.com 
Avon | 5151 E. US Hwy 36, Avon, IN 46123 | 317.745.6411 


Indianapolis | 9292 N. Meridian Street, Suite 150, Indianapolis, IN 46260 | 317.844.8300 


 
 


Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
The Board of Directors 
Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc.  
 
Opinion 
 
We audited the financial statements of Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc. d/b/a 
Springville Community Academy (the “School”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2023 and the related statements of activities and change in net assets, functional expenses, and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 


In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the School as of June 30, 2023 and the change in its net assets, functional expenses, and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 


Basis for Opinion 


We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  


We are required to be independent of the School and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe the audit evidence we 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 


Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report including 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 


In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 


 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 


to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 


 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed.  


 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 


 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, which raise substantial doubt about the School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 


We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters we identified during the audit. 


DONOVAN 


 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
February 28, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CURRENT ASSETS


Cash 177,222$         


Grants receivable 181,249


Accounts receivable 6,337


Prepaid expenses 43,083


Total current assets 407,891           


PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT


Land 181,365           


Building and improvements 916,546           


Furniture and fixtures 389,947           


Less: accumulated depreciation (99,343)            


Property and equipment, net 1,388,515        


OTHER ASSET


Security deposit 7,860


TOTAL ASSETS 1,804,266$      


CURRENT LIABILITIES


Current portion of notes payable 9,483$             


Note payable to Board member 25,000             


Line of credit 64,259             


Accounts payable 219,524


Accrued expenses 172,653


Total current liabilities 490,919           


LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 


Notes payable, net of current portion 243,691


Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (11,066)


Total long-term liabilities, net of unamortized debt issuance costs 232,625


Total liabilities 723,544           


NET ASSETS, WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 1,080,722        


TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,804,266$      


June 30, 2023


STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION


SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC.


ASSETS


LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS


d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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REVENUE AND SUPPORT


State education support 1,227,751$      


Grant revenue 596,685           


Preschool, extended care, and student fees 85,086             


Contributions 54,306             


Medicaid reimbursements 16,468


Other income 2,195


Total revenue and support 1,982,491        


EXPENSES


Program services 1,649,147        


Management and general 546,420           


Total expenses 2,195,567        


CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (213,076)          


NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,293,798        


NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 1,080,722$      


For the Year Ended June 30, 2023


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGE IN NET ASSETS


SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC.


d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Program 
Services


Management 
and General Total


Salaries and wages 848,559$         365,555$         1,214,114$      


Employee benefits 198,252 22,983 221,235           


Professional services 119,146 32,944             152,090           


Occupancy 109,518 -                      109,518           


Depreciation 99,343 -                      99,343             


Equipment 95,692 -                      95,692             


Classroom, kitchen, and office supplies 33,617 26,214             59,831             


Food service 57,983 -                      57,983             


Repairs and maintenance 17,648 33,468             51,116             


Information technology services 44,284 2,374               46,658             


Insurance -                      41,204             41,204             


Interest 1,434 18,609 20,043             


Staff development and recruitment 7,817 -                      7,817               


Travel 1,575               1,951               3,526               


Advertising -                      950 950                  


Other 14,279             168 14,447             


Total functional expenses 1,649,147$      546,420$         2,195,567$      


For the Year Ended June 30, 2023


STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES


SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC.


d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES


Change in net assets (213,076)$        


Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to


net cash provided by operating activities:


Depreciation 99,343             


Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,434               


Changes in certain assets and liabilities:


Grants receivable (181,249)          


Accounts receivable (6,337)              


Prepaid expenses (43,083)            


Security deposit (7,860)              


Accounts payable 219,433           


Accrued expenses 172,608           


Net cash provided by operating activities 41,213             


INVESTING ACTIVITIES


Purchases of property and equipment (109,457)          


FINANCING ACTIVITIES


Proceeds from notes payable 240,674           


Net proceeds from line of credit 1,320               


Payment on balance due to affiliate (6,610)              


Net cash provided by financing activities 235,384           
  


NET CHANGE IN CASH 167,140           


CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,082             


CASH, END OF YEAR 177,222$         


SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION


Cash paid for interest 18,609$           


Debt issuance costs financed with note payable 12,500             


SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC.


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS


For the Year Ended June 30, 2023


d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


See independent auditors' report and accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC.  
d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 


General – Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc. d/b/a Springville Community Academy 
(the “School”) is a public benefit not-for-profit organization incorporated under the laws of the State 
of Indiana and operates a public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24. The School is 
sponsored by the University of Southern Indiana (“USI”). The charter is effective through June 30, 
2029 and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. The School served approximately 165 students 
in grades kindergarten through eighth during the 2022-2023 school year, its inaugural year.  


 
Financial Statement Presentation – The School reports its financial position and activities according 
to two classes of net assets:  
 


 net assets without donor restrictions - which include unrestricted resources available for 
the operating objectives of the School; and  


 net assets with donor restrictions - which represent resources restricted by donors for 
specific time or purpose.  


 
As of June 30, 2023, the School had only net assets without donor restrictions.  
 
Basis of Accounting and Use of Estimates – The accompanying financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which requires management to make estimates and assumptions affecting certain reported 
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash consists of cash held in bank accounts and cash equivalents 
consist of short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. There 
were no cash equivalents at June 30, 2023. 
 
Grants Receivable – Grants receivable relate primarily to activities funded under federal programs 
and legislation enacted by the State of Indiana. The School believes it is operating in compliance with 
regulatory requirements and as such no allowance for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary.  
 
Accounts Receivable – Accounts receivable relate primarily to balances owed by students attending 
the School. Management believes the entire balance is collectible and as such no allowance for 
doubtful accounts is deemed necessary.  
 
Property and Equipment – Purchases of assets and expenditures which materially increase value or 
extend useful lives are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and 
repairs and minor replacement costs and equipment purchases are charged to expense as incurred. 
 
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives generally are as follows: 


 
Building and improvements  40 years 
Furniture and fixtures  5 years 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 


 
Debt Issuance Costs – During the year ended June 30, 2023, the School incurred debt issuance 
costs totaling $12,500 associated with securing notes payable. Amortization of these debt issuance 
costs is provided on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement (61 months). Amortization 
expense for the year ended June 30, 2023 was $1,434, which is included in interest expense. As 
provided by ASU 2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, debt issuance 
costs are presented as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability. 
 
Taxes on Income – The School received a determination from the U.S. Treasury Department stating it 
qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a tax-exempt 
organization; however, the School would be subject to tax on income unrelated to its tax-exempt 
purpose. For the year ended June 30, 2023, no accounting for federal and state income taxes was 
required to be included in the accompanying financial statements. 


 
Professional accounting standards require the School to recognize a tax liability only if it is more 
likely than not the tax position would not be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination 
being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax liability greater than 
50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the more-likely-than-not 
test, no tax liability is recorded. The School examined this issue and determined there are no material 
contingent tax liabilities or questionable tax positions. Since the School incorporated in August 2021, 
all periods are open to audit for both federal and state purposes. 


 
Subsequent Events – The School evaluated subsequent events through February 28, 2024, the date 
these financial statements were available to be issued. Events occurring through that date have been 
evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements or related disclosures would be 
required. 


 
 
NOTE 2 - REVENUE RECOGNITION 


 
Revenue Recognition Policy – Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana 
Charter Schools Act. Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the 
funding received by other public schools in the same geographic area. Funding from the State of 
Indiana is based on enrollment and paid in monthly installments in July through June coinciding with 
the academic school year. Revenue is recognized in the year which the educational services are 
rendered.  
 
A significant portion of the School’s revenue is the product of cost reimbursement grants. 
Accordingly, the School recognizes revenue under these grants in the amount of costs and expenses at 
the time they are incurred. Incurring approved costs under the grant is considered satisfaction of the 
performance obligations.  
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NOTE 2 - REVENUE RECOGNITION, Continued 


 
Preschool, extended care, and student fees are recognized in the year in which the services are 
rendered. 
 
The School also receives contributions and other income from other agencies and individuals, which 
are recorded in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements. 
 
Disaggregation of Revenue – Revenue is disaggregated on the statement of activities and change in 
net assets. 
 
 


NOTE 3 - PRIOR PERIOD FINANCIAL ACTIVITY 
 


Prior to the year ended June 30, 2023, the School’s first year of operations, the School received 
funding through notes payable and contributions in anticipation of opening. The School’s statement 
of financial position as of July 1, 2022 was as follows:  
 


Cash  $ 10,082 
Property and equipment, net  1,378,401 
   
   Total assets $ 1,388,483 
   
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 136 
Due to affiliate        6,610 
Line of credit  62,939 
Note payable  25,000 
Net assets, without donor restrictions  1,293,798 
   
   Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,388,483 


 
 
NOTE 4 - LINE OF CREDIT 
 


The School had a $100,000 revolving line of credit with Old National Bank maturing in March 2023. 
The line of credit was extended to March 2024 and the borrowing limit was reduced to $60,000. 
Borrowings bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 1% (a total of 9.25% at June 30, 2023) and are 
secured by substantially all assets of the School. As of June 30, 2023, the School had borrowings on 
the line of credit of $64,259.  
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NOTE 5 - NOTES PAYABLE 
 
 The notes payable consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023: 
 


Note payable to Old National Bank, payable in 
monthly installments of $413, including interest at 
6.5% per annum, secured by substantially all assets of 
the School.  


 


$      13,458  
     
Note payable to IFF, payable in monthly installments 
of $1,959 beginning January 2024, including interest 
at 5.5% per annum, secured by substantially all assets 
of the School.  


 


 239,716  
          253,174  
Less: current portion         (9,483)  
     
Long-term portion  $ 243,691  


 
Principal maturities of notes payable are as follows for the years ending June 30: 


 
2024 $      9,483 
2025  15,429 
2026  16,162 
2027  12,140 
2028  12,825 
Thereafter  187,135 
   
 $ 253,174 


 
The School also borrowed $25,000 from a founding Board member at no interest with no defined 
repayment terms. 


 
 
NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN 


 
The School provides retirement benefits covering substantially all full-time employees. Retirement 
benefits are provided by the Indiana State Teachers’ Retirement Fund (“TRF”) and the Indiana Public 
Employees’ Retirement Fund (“PERF”), both of which are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit retirement plans governed by the State of Indiana and administered by the Indiana Public 
Retirement System (“INPRS”) Board.  
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NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN, Continued 


 
Contribution requirements of plan members are determined annually by the INPRS Board. The 
School contributed 6.0% and 11.2% of compensation for eligible teaching personnel and other 
employees to TRF and PERF, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2023. Should the School elect 
to withdraw from TRF or PERF, it could be subject to a withdrawal fee. The School’s contributions 
represent an insignificant percentage of the total contributions received by TRF and PERF. As of 
June 30, 2023, TRF and PERF were approximately 88% and 81% funded, respectively.  


 
Total contributions to INPRS for TRF and PERF were $47,709 for the year ended June 30, 2023.  


 
 
NOTE 7 - COMMITMENT 
 


As the sponsoring organization, USI exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Beginning with the 
2023-2024 school year, USI will assess a fee equal to 3% of basic tuition support received by the 
School. No authorizer oversight fees were paid during the year ended June 30, 2023.  
 
The charter agreement requires the School to establish an escrow account of no less than $30,000 
should a dissolution occur. As of June 30, 2023, this account had not been established. 


 
 
NOTE 8 - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 


The School provides educational instruction to students residing in Lawrence County, Indiana, and is 
subject to the risks of economic and competitive forces at work within this geographic area. 
 
The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the State of Indiana and grants awarded 
under federal programs. Changes in state or federal legislation could significantly affect the School. 
Additionally, the School is subject to monitoring and audit by state and federal agencies. Those 
examinations may result in additional liability to be imposed on the School. 
 
Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk consist 
principally of receivables from the State of Indiana. In addition, deposits maintained at Old National 
Bank and are insured up to the FDIC insurance limit. 
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NOTE 9 - LIQUIDITY 
 


Financial assets include cash and grants receivable and totaled $364,808 as of June 30, 2023, all of 
which are available to meet the cash needs for general expenditures within one year. The School also 
has a line of credit with bank, which was overdrawn as of June 30, 2023. 
 
From time to time, the School receives donor-restricted contributions. Because donor restrictions 
require resources to be used in a particular manner or in a future period, the School must maintain 
sufficient resources to meet those responsibilities to its donors. Thus, financial assets may not be 
available for general expenditure within one year. As part of the School’s liquidity management, it 
has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and 
other obligations come due. 


 
 
NOTE 10 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE REPORTING 
 


The costs of providing educational activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statement of activities and change in net assets. Management of the School categorized expenses as 
program services or management and general according to the underlying nature of the expense. As 
such, no allocation of specific transactions between these categories was required. 
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The report presented herein was prepared in addition to another official report prepared for the School as 
listed below: 
 


Supplemental Audit Report of Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc.  
d/b/a Springville Community Academy 


 
The Supplemental Audit Report contains the results of compliance testing required by the Indiana State 
Board of Accounts under its Guidelines for the Audits of Charter Schools Performed by Private 
Examiners pertaining to matters addressed in its Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual 
for Indiana Charter Schools. 
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To the Board of Directors 
Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc.  
 
We audited the financial statements of Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc. d/b/a 
Springville Community Academy (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 and issued 
our report thereon dated February 28, 2024. Professional standards require us to provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards require us to 
communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Matters 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the School are described in Notes 1 and 2 to the financial statements. 
Effective July 1, 2022, the School adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-02, Leases 
(Topic 842). ASU 2016-02 replaced previous lease guidance under accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and aims to increase transparency and comparability among 
organizations by disclosing both qualitative and quantitative information regarding the amount, timing, 
and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. There were no material leases during the year ended 
June 30, 2023, therefore, the new standard had no effect on the School’s financial statements. 
 
We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period.  
 
Significant Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected. We identified no particularly sensitive accounting estimates during the audit.  
  
Significant Disclosures 
 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. We identified no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures. 


 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. We were contacted by the School late in 2023, which resulted in a late start and late completion of 
the audit. We anticipate more timely delivery of the audit results in subsequent audits. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
  
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those which are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management corrected all such misstatements. A listing of all the corrected misstatements identified as a 
result of our audit is included on page 4. 
  
Disagreements with Management 
  
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, which could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report no such disagreements arose during 
the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
  
We requested certain representations from management which were provided in the management 
representation letter dated February 28, 2024. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditors’ opinion which may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors. These discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to 
our retention. We call your attention to the following matters: 
 


Escrow Account  
 
The charter agreement requires the School to establish an escrow account of no less than $30,000 
should a dissolution occur. As of June 30, 2023, this account had not been established.  
 
Line of Credit Borrowings 
 
The School has a $60,000 line of credit with Old National Bank, which was overdrawn by $4,259 
as of June 30, 2023.  
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Other Matters  
 
This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Directors, management of the School, the 
School’s authorizer, and the Indiana State Board of Accounts and is not intended to be, and should not be, 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
DONOVAN 


 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
February 28, 2024 
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Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc. d/b/a Springville Community Academy 
Corrected Misstatements 
Audit of the Year Ended June 30, 2023 
 
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 101     
PAJE <101> To adjust principal balance and  fees on IFF note 
payable to actual. 


    
52200.832 52200 52200.832 Interest Expense  3,050.00   


NEW ACCT IFF Loan Origination Fee  12,500.00   
5100.003 5110 IFF Note Payable     15,550.00 


Total   15,550.00  15,550.00 


      
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 102     
PAJE <102> To adjust payroll accrual and FICA accrual to actual. 


    
11100.11030 11100.110.30 Elementary:Certified Salaries - FT  15,678.93   


24100.11040 24100.110.40 Office of the Principal:Certified 
Salaries - School Admin  3,919.73   


5200 Payroll Liabilities:Accrued Payroll and FICA     19,598.66 


Total   19,598.66  19,598.66 


      
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 103     
PAJE <103> To amortize note payable debt issuance costs. 


NEW ACCT Amortization Expense  1,434.00   
NEW ACCT Accumulated Amortization - Debt Issuance     1,434.00 


Total   1,434.00  1,434.00 


      
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 104     
PAJE <104> To eliminate food and kitchen inventory, which is not 
capitalizable.  


    
31400.614 31400.614 Food Purchases:Food Purchases  20,593.00   


12100 12100 Inventory Asset     20,593.00 


Total   20,593.00  20,593.00 


 








 


 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SUPPLEMENTAL AUDIT REPORT 
OF 


SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC. 
d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


 
LAWRENCE COUNTY, INDIANA 


 
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 


 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 
 


 
                                                                                                                                       Page 
 
School Officials ............................................................................................................  1 
 
Transmittal Letter ..........................................................................................................  2 
 
Audit Results and Comments: 
 
 Receipts and Deposits ............................................................................................  3 
 
 Credit Card Policy and Compliance .......................................................................  3 
 


Payroll Compliance ................................................................................................  4 
 


Ticket Sales ............................................................................................................  4 
 
Employee Bond ......................................................................................................  4 


 
Exit Conference ............................................................................................................  5 
 
Official Responses ........................................................................................................  6 - 7 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY AND RURAL FOUNDATION, INC. 
d/b/a SPRINGVILLE COMMUNITY ACADEMY 


LAWRENCE COUNTY, INDIANA 


School Officials 


July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 


1 


 
 
 


Office Official Term 
   


President of Board of Directors Kevin Smith 07/01/22 – 06/30/23 
   


Academy Administrator Jayme Davis 07/01/22 – 06/30/23 
   


Treasurer of Board of Directors Beth Feldman 07/01/22 – 06/30/23 
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The Board of Directors 
Springville Community and Rural Foundation Inc.  
 
We audited the financial statements of Springville Community and Rural Foundation, Inc. d/b/a 
Springville Community Academy (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 and issued 
our report thereon dated February 28, 2024. As part of our audit, we tested the School’s compliance with 
provisions of the Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools 
issued by the Indiana State Board of Accounts and related provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements. Reported in the Audit Results and Comments are matters we believe the School was 
not in compliance with those provisions. 
 
 
DONOVAN 


 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
February 28, 2024 
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RECEIPTS AND DEPOSITS 
 
We selected a sample of twenty-five receipts for testing, eleven of which were not deposited in a timely 
manner. The individual receipts not deposited timely ranged from $45 to $320 and were deposited 
between 6 and 10 days late. Of the remaining receipts, seven had no deposit support available, therefore 
our testing was unable to be performed. For the entire sample of twenty-five receipts, none had 
documentation sufficient to match the deposit form and amounts to bank deposit totals. 
 
All charter school money must be deposited in the designated depository not later than the business day 
following the receipt of funds on business days of the depository in the same form in which the funds 
were received. Timely receipts and deposits are required to provide the organizer and charter school 
administration with current information necessary for all financial decisions. (Accounting and Uniform 
Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 8) 
 
Receipts shall be issued and recorded at the time of the transaction; for example, when cash or a check 
is received, a receipt is to be immediately prepared and given to the person making payment. (Accounting 
and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 8) 
 
The deposit ticket or attached documentation must provide a detailed listing of the deposit, which 
includes at a minimum, check numbers and corresponding names of payors.  (Accounting and Uniform 
Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 10) 
 
 
CREDIT CARD POLICY AND COMPLIANCE  
 
Of the five credit card transactions tested, the School incurred interest for the months of March ($37.84), 
April ($52.39) and June ($44.87) 2023. 
 
Payment shall not be made on the basis of a statement, or a credit card slip only. Procedures for payments 
shall be no different than for any other claim. Supporting documents such as paid bills and receipts must 
be available. Additionally, any interest or penalty incurred due to late filing or furnishing of 
documentation by an officer or employee is the responsibility of that officer or employee. (Accounting 
and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 10)  
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PAYROLL COMPLIANCE 
 
Of the fifteen employees tested, two were paid incorrect amounts (one of which was identified and 
corrected by the School). Additionally, one employee was paid for the wrong number of hours due to a 
mistake by the payroll provider.  
 
The charter school shall maintain adequate supporting documentation for payroll to ensure that payments 
are made only for services rendered. Supporting documentation, such as time cards, must show signs of 
supervisory approval. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter 
Schools, Part 8) 
 
All compensation and benefits paid to employees must be included in the labor contract or salary schedule 
unless otherwise authorized by statute. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for 
Indiana Charter Schools, Part 10) 
 
 
TICKET SALES 
 
The School did not use ticket forms.  
 
The designated charter school employee shall be responsible for the proper accounting for all tickets and 
must keep a record of the number purchased, the number issued for sale, and the number returned. The 
designee must see that proper accounting is made for the cash received from those sold. All tickets shall 
be pre-numbered, with a different ticket color and numerical series for each price group. When cash for 
ticket sales is deposited with the charter school, the charter school’s receipt issued therefore must show 
the number of tickets issued to the seller, the number returned unsold and the balance remitted in cash. 
All tickets (including free or reduced) must be listed and accounted for on the SA-4 Ticket Sales Form. 
(Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 8) 
 
Officials and employees are required to use State Board of Accounts prescribed or approved forms in the 
manner prescribed. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter 
Schools, Part 10) 
 
 
EMPLOYEE BOND  
 
The School did not have an employee bond.  
 
The organizer shall designate employees who are responsible for handling a majority of the cash, receipts, 
and disbursements. The designated employees must have either a cash bond or an insurance policy on 
their behalf that protects the charter school from employee theft, fraud, errors, and omissions. The cash 
bond or insurance policy should represent an average amount of cash or receipts on hand during the 
school year. (Accounting and Uniform Compliance Guidelines Manual for Indiana Charter Schools, Part 
8) 
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The contents of this report were discussed on February 28, 2024, with Beth Feldman (Treasurer), Kevin 
Davis (Outside Consultant), Lynn Black (Outside Consultant), Steve Bridges (Representative of 
Authorizer), Shelly Blunt (Representative of Authorizer), Kevin Smith (Chair of Board of Directors), 
and Jayme Davis (Academy Administrator). The official responses have been made a part of this report 
and may be found on pages 6 and 7. 
 
 
 
 
 







 


February 28, 2024 


Donovan CPAs 


9292 N. Meridian Street, Suite 150 


Indianapolis, IN 46260 


 
Subject: Response SBOA to Audit Findings for FY22-23 


Dear Erin: 


Below are the Springville Community Academy responses to the SBOA audit findings for the 


fiscal year 2022-2023: 


 


 
Response to Finding #1: Springville Community Academy (SCA) has updated its processes/ 


procedures to document receipts in the manner required by the Indiana State Board of 


Accounts (SBOA). SCA is also depositing funds received into the bank as required by SBOA. 


The school is located approximately 10 miles from its bank. The majority of funds received by 


SCA is through ACH. The school has also instituted an electronic option for payment of 


school lunches, extended care, and PreK. Many parents have taken advantage of this method 


of payment. This mitigates many of the issues with deposits as the transactions are 


completely electronic. 


 
Response to Finding #2: SCA has updated its processes/procedures to pay all credit card 


charges immediately (some vendors require payment with a credit card) so that no 


transactions incur interest charges and so that the school is in compliance with the 


requirements of the Indiana State Board of Accounts (SBOA). When the school was first 


opened last year, it relied on the use of a credit card to help with cash flow challenges. Our 


bank has since offered us a pre-paid debit card that we can transfer funds to as needed to 


make these types of purchases. It offers security and incurs no interest charges. 


 
Response to Finding #3:  SCA has updated its processes/procedures for payroll to ensure 


that the payroll processed by the outside payroll provider is accurate and matches exactly 


to the payroll information submitted.  Timecards are used by employees and are used to 


validate the payroll hours and payments processed. The payroll summary is double 


checked by SCA office manager and then signed off by the Academy Administrator before 


the payroll provider processes the payroll.   
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Springville 


Community 


Academy
126 Brick Street


Springville, IN 47462


(812) 508-6078


Response to Finding #4:  SCA has updated its processes/procedures for ticket sales to comply 
with the IN State Board of Accounts requirements.  The school now uses prenumbered tickets 
for all of Extra Curricular activities and then includes those tickets sold for a particular event to 
the deposit ticket it supports. The school uses the SA-4 Ticket Sales Form as prescribed by the 
SBOA. 


Response to Finding #5:  SCA has obtained a $50,000 bond for the Treasurer position and a 
$30,000 policy for each employee who handles funds at the school as required by SBOA.  We 
misunderstood that school theft insurance policy to cover these positions but found it was not 
sufficient.  This has now been rectified. 


Please let us know if you need anything further to address the findings. We appreciate all of your 
work and expertise in conducting the SCA audit. 


Sincerely, 


Beth Feldman, Treasurer


y,
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